
Work Session &  Regular Meeting Minutes - May 3, 2010

Page 1

The regular meeting of the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey
was held on May 3,  2010 at 7:00 p.m. in the meeting room of the Township Hall, 2600 Bayshore Road, Villas, New
Jersey.

The Clerk announced that the meeting was being held in compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act and that
adequate notice of the meeting had been provided according to law.

The following members of Council were present for roll call taken by the Clerk:

Councilmember Thomas Conrad
Councilmember Wayne Mazurek
Councilmember Glenn Douglass

Deputy Mayor Kevin Lare
Mayor Michael Beck

Also present: Anthony Monzo, Solicitor, and Kathleen McPherson, Manager

WORK SESSION

MUA - Township Request for Undesignated Fund Balance
Mayor Beck asked Manager McPherson if the MUA had gotten back to the Township about the request.
Manager McPherson said Mr. DeMarcantonio had just gotten back from vacation and the MUA Board would be
discussing it on Wednesday night.
Deputy Mayor Lare said there were two issues at hand and Council should have discussed the matter before they 
asked for the money.  He asked the other Councilmembers if they had any thoughts on the issue.
Mayor Beck said the last meeting was so long and it was kicked  around for 10-15 minutes and it was decided to get
more information on it.  He said he didn �t support it.  He said if a majority of Council didn �t want to go ahead with the
letter he had no problem pulling the letter back.  He said if Council wanted to go ahead with it he was fine with that. 
He though the mandate was to gather information and look into it.
Councilmember Conrad said he thought it was to gather information and was surprised the letter went out.  He felt it
was to get information to see if it was legal.
Manager McPherson said she sent a  memo to Council with the budget cuts and in the memo it stated she was
sending the letter and she had no response from Council.
Deputy Mayor Lare felt the letter should be rescinded.  He said they couldn �t act in the future on what one person
stood up and said.  He said to ask the MUA for $335,000.00 was far reaching.  
Mayor Beck said he didn �t feel anyone supported it.  He said they all wanted more information and felt Council
should had voted the last meeting not to do the letter.
Councilmember Mazurek said he didn �t agreed the MUA proposal had merit.  He didn �t think they should be taking
ratepayer money just like the ratepayers shouldn �t take taxpayer money if they got in trouble.  He read the letter as
an inquiry as to wether or not they were interested.  He agreed if all of Council thought the letter was binding to
rescind the letter.
Councilmember Douglass said the issue had been brought up four years ago and never pursued.  He also felt the
letter was an inquiry and had no problem with rescinding it.
Deputy Mayor Lare said he didn �t want it construed when he said the letter had merit as he wanted the money.  He
was also fine with rescinding the letter.  



Work Session &  Regular Meeting Minutes - May 3, 2010

Page 2

Fishing Creek Watershed & Flooding
Councilmember Conrad said there was a meeting with some of the people that had troubles with the flooding so they
could and have some input on the resolution.  He said the resolution wasn �t locking the County into anything.  He
said it was asking the County to look into it and get some data.  He mentioned the County had complained about the
electric to run the pumps and it was suggested to the County to use solar power.  
Councilmember Conrad said since they dammed it up the residents in the area had seen a change in the water
levels.  He said it hadn �t been just this year from the water it had been gradually building up.  He said to turn it back
into a marsh and it would get rid of the fragmities.   
Councilmember Mazurek asked what they were trying to accomplish, was it to have the County look into it.  He said
to just write them a letter and ask them to look into it.
Councilmember Conrad said a letter was sent to the County and they basically said  �no �.  
Councilmember Douglass said he was alright with the resolution.  He said he had been a little involved with the
pumps and at the planning board.  He felt it may be an official word to the County.  He agreed with Councilmember
Conrad for them to look into alternative energy.    

Review of Consent and Regular Agenda Items
Deputy Mayor Lare asked about the change order #4 on the ADA project  and if Remington Vernick had been the
engineers.
Manager McPherson said yes they were.
Deputy Mayor Lare asked if the grant vs match on the project was 65/35.
Manager McPherson said it was the money received from the County.

Public Questions on Consent Agenda and/or Regular Agenda Items
No comments.

Consent Agenda
Approval of Minutes April 19, 2010
Res. #2010-115, Resolution Requesting Cape May County Investigate the Fishing Creek Watershed to Determine

Its Effect on Local Flooding In Lower Township (withdrawn from Apr. 19th agenda)
Res.  #2010-122 Payment of Vouchers, $5,650,699.13
Res.  #2010-123 Authorizing the Person to Person Transfer of Liquor License #0505-36-014-003 from Achristavest

LLC to Achristavest Pier 6600 LLC (Change in corporate structure only)
Res. #2010-124, Approval of Change Order #4 for Municipal ADA Project (Locks/pushbar to be installed on corridor

doors, $5,555.00)
Res. #2010-125, Resolution Amending PBA Contract (No overtime for 2010)
Res. #2010-126, Approval of Cold Spring Presbyterian Church �s Application to Conduct a Flea Market on May 15

(rain date May 22)
Res. #2010-127, Rejection of Bids  for HVAC Service Agreement for Lower Township, Various Locations (Bids

being rejected for revision of bid specifications)
Res. #2010-128, Resolution for Emergency Temporary Appropriations (to extend the current temporary budget from

the end of April through the end of May)
Ord. #2010-06, An Ordinance Amending Chapter 340 of the Code of the Township of Lower to Provide

for the Inspection of Fireworks Loaded in the Township of Lower for Discharge
Elsewhere, 1st rdg. (Regulations for unloading of fireworks in Township) 2nd rdg. May 17th

Councilmember Mazurek motioned to adopt the consent agenda items, seconded by Councilmember Conrad.    
The consent agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember
Mazurek,  �yes �, Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor  Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck ,  �yes �.



Work Session &  Regular Meeting Minutes - May 3, 2010

Page 3

Council briefly discussed the fee to be inserted into the fireworks resolution.  It was noted that the Fire Official had
not been able to attend the meeting and would be at the next meeting to discuss the ordinance.

Regular Agenda

Traffic Amendment
Ord.  #2010-04, Ordinance Amending Chapter Seven Entitled  �Traffic � of the Code of the Township of Lower, was
presented for second reading.
The Clerk announced the ordinance had been advertised and posted as required.  
Mayor Beck opened the meeting to the public for comments on the ordinance.
Bill Greenfield of Villas asked why they were prohibiting parking there.
Solicitor Monzo said it was a requirement of the CAFRA permit for the project.
Mr. Greenfield said it should have been taken care of before they received the CAFRA permit.
Solicitor Monzo said basically the ordinance was to implement things that were already approved.
Mr. Greenfield said he was concerned they were trying to eliminate beach access.
Solicitor Monzo said it was part of the plan to maintain beach access.  He said the beach could be accessed near
the Beach Club.
Janet Pitts asked if Rochester Ave. was the same street where the playground was that Erma Fire Company asked
to build a sub-station.
Manager McPherson said the Township owned a portion of it.
Ms. Pitts asked if some of it could be converted to a parking lot since they were losing parking spaces.
Councilmember Douglass said there was still some talk about the sub-station going there.
Deputy Mayor Lare asked the Solicitor if the Township could lease the lot for parking. 
Solicitor Monzo said  �yes �.
Mayor Beck said maybe it was something that Council should look into as a revenue source.
Councilmember Mazurek questioned the liability.
Mayor Beck said that was something that the Solicitor could address.
Councilmember Douglass stated when the construction had been going on he didn �t have complaints from the
neighbors.  He felt there wouldn �t be a problem there.
Joe Winters asked why was the  �no parking � on the north side.
Solicitor Monzo said the south side was all curb cut and no ability to park there.
Mr. Winters asked if it was a give back about the parking.
Solicitor Monzo explained why it was being done.
Councilmember Mazurek said it was part of the approval process because people complained about parking and
they made it part of the permit process.
A brief discussion on the access to the beach.  
Mr. Winters asked why it wasn �t done until now.
Solicitor Monzo said it was just brought to their attention that the ordinance had to be modified.
Manager McPherson said the police brought it to their attention.
Mayor Beck closed the public portion.
Councilmember  motioned to adopt the ordinance, seconded by Councilmember         .  The ordinance  was adopted
by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember Mazurek,  �yes �, Councilmember
Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor  Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck ,  �yes �.

Land Use Amendment - Conservation District

Ord. #2010-05, An Ordinance Amending Chapter 400 of the Code of the Township of Lower was presented for
second reading.
The Clerk announced the ordinance had been advertised and posted as required.  



Work Session &  Regular Meeting Minutes - May 3, 2010

Page 4

Mayor Beck opened the meeting to the public for comments on the ordinance.
No public comment.
Councilmember Mazurek motioned to adopt the ordinance, seconded by Councilmember Douglass.
The ordinance  was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember Mazurek,
 �yes �, Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor  Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck ,  �yes �.

2010 Municipal Budget

Mayor Beck opened the public hearing on the 2010 Municipal Budget introduced pursuant to Res. #2010-104,
Resolution adopted on March 29, 2010.
Leon Costell said the budget was introduced on March 29th, on April 19th a workshop on the budget was held.  He
said after the meeting they developed an amendment to decrease the budget by 1 million 30 thousand.  He said
most of the changes were covered at the April 19th.  He went over the OE �s that were cut.  He said all of the changes
produced a change in the reserve for uncollected taxes.  
Mayor Beck said 60% were spending cuts and the other amount was fund balance being used.
Deputy Mayor Lare asked Mr. Costello to elaborate statement about the rate change.
Mr. Costello said the rate would change to a 6.7% on the rate because the rateables changed from the devaluation. 
He said both schools were at zero and other municipalities were under a penny.

Public Comment on Amendment to the Budget
Sue Baily asked if that was correct there would be a decrease in the departments in salary and wage.
Mr. Costello said that was correct in the ones he read off with the cuts.
Jack Sparks said the road to zero was zero.  He said what Council did was terrific and they were to be
congratulated.  
Mayor Beck said everyone worked hard on it.
Mr. Sparks said he knew a lot of time was put in on it.
Mr. Costello said Lower Township was the only one with a zero increase.
Mayor Beck said next year would be a worry.
Fred Long thanked everyone for what was done and also thanked the financial team. 
Brian McEwing of Townbank Road said it was discussed at the April 19th meeting about positions of police to be
done away with through attrition as well as DPW.  
Mayor Beck said as stated they were not replacing one position in the police department and there would be no
hiring at public works.
Mr. McEwing asked if the Township had a comprehensive staffing plan?

Manager McPherson said the Township participated in the Local Government Budget Review.  She explained the
plan had made recommendations and that cutting staff takes many years because they would rather do it through
attrition instead of layoffs.
Mr. McEwing said there were decisions being made and he felt it would be a good decision to have a staffing plan.
Manager McPherson said that was easier said than done.  She said through new technology available it enabled the
Township to do more work with less staff.
Mayor Beck said a census was being done now and that would play heavily on some departments.  He said some
hard decisions were being made at the State level that were filtering down to the Township which was causing the
Township to pull back on some issues.
Mr. McEwing he said at some point the Township would have to hire.  He asked if there was a consensus among
Council to make changes for new employees and was Council going to approach the unions about it?
Manager McPherson said they had done that already and they were rejected.
Mayor Beck said he didn �t see any hiring for now.
Joe Boyle of Arizona Ave. said they needed the police.
Ed Butler of Villas and VP of Lower Township Taxpayers Association thanked Council for the zero budget and hoped
all the taxpayers appreciated it.
Bob Baily of Erma asked what impact that would have on next year. 
Mayor Beck said it was a race against time to adjust contracts and be able to put the tool kit into effect that was
promised to them.



Work Session &  Regular Meeting Minutes - May 3, 2010

Page 5

Mr. Baily said if $5.00 a month would help this year for next year.
Mayor Beck said they couldn �t get a straight answer from the State if there was a tax increase how it would impact
the State Aid for next year.
Mr. Baily said years ago someone did a zero increase and it wasn �t good.
Mayor Beck said they were reducing cost as they went along.
Mr. Baily said he would rather pay the $5.00 a month now instead of seeing people loose their jobs next year.
Tom Keywood, Lieutenant of Lower Township Police Department read a statement from Chief Donohue which is
attached and made part of the minutes.
Jack Sparks mentioned he watched the budget hearings in Trenton all five days and said there were major problems
coming if the 2% CAP was put into affect.
Frank Majane of Erma asked if the cuts were made with the consent of the Auditor.
Mayor Beck said he could answer himself but the end result was what was coming from the State.
Councilmember Mazurek said what the Auditor did say was it probably wouldn �t be a problem if they cut between
$100,000.00 - $200,000.00.
Mr. Majane said the Auditor wasn �t recommending them to do it and asked if it was an election ploy.
Mayor Beck said he wasn �t comfortable with the message from the State in reference to the State Aid next year.
He said the State �s philosophy was they didn �t want a tax increase passed on to the citizens to make up what was
cut. 
 Mr. Majane said he felt it was a big mistake by not listening to the Auditor.  
Mr. Winters said if they listened to the Auditor the Township would have to cut employees.
Joe Link of Town Bank said he agreed with public safety and should listen to the Chief of Police.  He said what
bugged him was Council was talking about block parties, fourth of July and farmers markets.  He said there were
business on Bayshore Road going under, people were losing their homes and people in Township Hall were afraid
of losing their jobs and didn �t Council get it.
Janet Pitts said things had to be looked at in a different perspective.  She said they were ways for people to enjoy
themselves and the community events were not funded by taxpayer dollars.   She said they had to move to
alternative sources of revenue.
Councilmember Conrad said the block party wasn �t the Township �s they tied into the green fair as part of the Rural
Sustainable Grant.  He said he was hoping to get grants for solar panels and other sources to save money.
Mayor Beck closed the public portion.                              

2010 Municipal Budget Amendment

Res. #2010-129, Resolution to Amend the Budget.
The Clerk announced the hearing on the amendment would be held at the May 17 Council meeting.

Councilmember Lare made a motion to adopt the resolution, seconded by Councilmember Mazurek.
The resolution was adopted by the following roll call vote:  Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember Mazurek,
 �yes �, Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor  Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck ,  �yes �.

Administrative Reports
Personnel Action Report 
April Report - Municipal Judge
Council received and accepted the Administrative Reports presented.

Council Comments
Councilmember Conrad said the bike auction would be held on the weekend.  He thanked Council for getting
donations for the fireworks.

Budget
Councilmember Mazurek told Mr. Majane he would agree a 7/10 cent raise would not be a big burden.  He said he
would normally be opposed to using the surplus, but the situation was a little different back then you knew what the
State was going to do.  He said now you had no idea what the State was doing you couldn �t get a straight answer
from them.  He felt it could be a problem if they raised taxes and then lost all their money then it would be a problem.
He said it wasn �t the perfect situation.



Work Session &  Regular Meeting Minutes - May 3, 2010

Page 6

Councilmember Douglass he agreed with Councilmember Mazurek �s statement.  He said the information from the
State was sending wasn �t refined.  He said things were new and everyone was learning as they went along.  He said
they did need to look into future contracts.  He said the community had come together for the fireworks.  He said he
wasn �t for anymore reduction in the workforce.
Deputy Mayor Lare said there were a lot of good comments from the public regarding the budget and valid concerns. 
He said the people hurting the most were being helped from this budget.  He wasn �t in agreement with the theory
that you had to spend more this year to spend more next year.  He felt it was a good budget and helping the little
guy. 

Fireworks
 Deputy Mayor Lare said as far as the fireworks $20,000.00 was raised and he hoping for a few more thousand.  He
said the money that was being used this years had previously been used for the rides.

Budget
Mayor Beck said the budget had been a team effort.  The situation the Township was in had forced decisions that
were long overdue.  He said they would have to continue if the Township was going to survive.  He said losing the
$400,000.00 had put them in that position.  He said they had to work to bring things under control in the long run.

Various Activities in the Township
He announced the bike auction on May 8th, Armed Forces Day on May 15th, Sunset Beach Ceremony honoring
Veterans on June 5th, Block Party and Green Fair on June 5th.  
Mayor Beck announced FEMA Disaster Recovery Center was at the County Library and the window for  filing a claim
was getting close.

Call to the Public

MUA Fund Balance Request
Fred Long said he would like to clear up the confusion on the MUA fund balance request.  He read the statute that
covered requesting the funds.  He said it didn �t state that the authority had to approve the request.  He said the only
restriction was if the money was  encumbered by conveyance for bond issues.  
Deputy Mayor Lare said the funds were requested without a consensus of Council.  He asked Mr. Long if he was for
Council requesting the money.
Mr. Long said if there were surplus funds sitting there and they could be put to better use instead of sitting in a bank.
Mayor Beck he felt the MUA had their own problems and the Township would solve their own.  His understanding
was the MUA had to approve it.
Solicitor Monzo said the amount had to be appropriated by the MUA..

Freeman Douglass Park
Scott Douglass thanked the Seashore Community Church for the nice job done at Douglass Park.  He asked if they
were going to have rides at the 4th of July Celebration?
Manager McPherson said they were looking into what they could get.

Crest Place
Mr. Link said he was here in November of last year and the Mayor said he would get back to him after talking to the
Solicitor.
Mayor Beck said he remembered Mr. Link talking about paving of Crest Place.
Mr. Link said he sent him and the Solicitor certified letters.
Solicitor Monzo said he would look into it and get back to the Manager so she could communicate with Mr. Link.

Councilmember Douglass motioned to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Councilmember Mazurek the meeting
unanimously adjourned by verbal  �ayes � at   8:30  p.m.

        _______________________________                        ____________________________             
                        Mayor                                                                   Township Clerk

Approved: May 17, 2010



Work Session &  Regular Meeting Minutes - May 3, 2010

Page 7


